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       SHOOP A PROFESSIONAL LAW CORPORATION 
       David R. Shoop, Esq., SBN 220576 
       Thomas S. Alch, Esq., SBN 136860 
       350 S. Beverly Drive 
       Suite 330 
       Beverly Hills, CA 90212 
       Tel: (310) 277-1700 
 
       Attorneys for Plaintiffs 
       and the class   
 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

      –––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––   x  
       Balmore Prudencio, and Michelle            
      Quintero, individually on behalf of themselves and all       
      others similarly situated, and John Does (1-100) on  
      behalf of themselves and all others similarly situated, 
 
 Plaintiffs, 
 

-against- 
 
 

      Midway Importing, Inc. and Grisi USA, LLC 
  
                                                             Defendants. 

: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 

 
 
Case No.: 2:18-cv-01469-AB-RAO 

 
 
 
 

SECOND AMENDED  
CLASS ACTION 

COMPLAINT 
 

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 
 
 

     ––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––– x  
 

Plaintiffs Balmore Prudencio, and Michelle Quintero (hereinafter 

“Plaintiffs”), individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated, by their attorneys, 

allege the following upon information and belief, except for those allegations pertaining to 

Plaintiffs, which are based on personal knowledge:  

NATURE OF THE ACTION 

1. This action seeks to remedy the deceptive and misleading business practices 

of Midway Importing, Inc. (hereinafter “Defendant Midway”) and Grisi USA, LLC 

Case 2:18-cv-01469-AB-RAO   Document 34   Filed 09/11/18   Page 1 of 32   Page ID #:285



 

 2  
 

  
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

(hereinafter “Defendant Grisi USA”) with respect to the marketing and sales of the 

following Grisi product line (hereinafter the “Products”) throughout the State California, 

and throughout the country: 

● Grisi Regenerative Aloe Vera Natural Soap 

● Grisi Balance Oat Natural Soap 

● Grisi Lightening Mother of Peal Natural Soap 

● Grisi Moisturizer Donkey’s Milk Natural Soap  

2. Defendants distribute the Products using a marketing and advertising 

campaign centered around claims that appeal to health- conscious consumers, i.e., that its 

Products are “Natural”.  However, Defendants’ advertising and marketing campaign is 

false, deceptive, and misleading because the Products contain synthetic ingredients.   

3. Plaintiffs and those similarly situated (“Class Members”) relied on 

Defendants’ misrepresentations that the Products are “Natural” when purchasing the 

Products.  Plaintiffs and Class Members paid a premium for the Products over and above 

comparable products that did not purport to be “Natural”.  Given that Plaintiffs and Class 

Members paid a premium for the Products based on Defendants’ misrepresentations that 

they are “Natural”, Plaintiffs and Class Members suffered an injury in the amount of the 

premium paid. 

4. Defendants’ conduct violated and continues to violate, inter alia, California 

Business Codes §§ 17200 and 1750.  Defendants breached and continues to breach their 

express and implied warranties regarding the Products.  Defendants have been and 

continue to be unjustly enriched.  Accordingly, Plaintiffs bring this action against 
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Defendants on behalf of themselves and Class Members who purchased the Products 

during the applicable statute of limitations period (the “Class Period”). 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

5. Jurisdiction is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2).    Plaintiffs 

Balmore Prudencio and Michelle Quintero are citizens of the State of California.  

Defendant Midway is a corporation with its principal place of business in Houston, Texas, 

and is organized and exists under the laws of the State of Texas.  Defendant Grisi USA is   

is a corporation with its principal place of business in Dallas, Texas, and is organized and 

exists under the laws of the State of Texas. Upon information and belief, the amount in 

controversy is in excess of $5,000,000, exclusive of interests and costs.   

6. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendants because Defendants 

conduct and transact business in the State of California, contract to supply goods within 

the State of California, and supply goods within the State of California.  The transactions 

giving rise to this case occurred in California. 

7. Venue is proper because Balmore Prudencio, Michelle Quintero, and many 

Class Members reside in the Central District of California, and throughout the State of 

California, and Defendant Midway maintains offices in Santa Fe Springs, California. 

PARTIES 

Plaintiffs 

8. Plaintiff Balmore Prudencio is an individual consumer, who, at all times 

material hereto, was a resident of Orange County, California.  On approximately ten 

occasions in 2016 and 2017, he purchased the Products, including the Grisi Regenerative 
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Aloe Vera Natural Soap and the Grisi Lightening Mother of Pearl Soap at a Walmart in 

Santa Ana, California.   

9. Mr. Prudencio purchased the Products because he read the packaging, which 

represented that the Products are “Natural”.  Mr. Prudencio relied on the Defendants’ false, 

misleading, and deceptive representations that the Products are “Natural”.  Had he known 

the truth – that the representations he relied upon in making his purchase were false, 

misleading, and deceptive – he would not have purchased the Products or paid as much as 

he did for them. If the Products were actually "Natural," as represented on the Products’ 

labels, Plaintiff would purchase the Products in the immediate future. However, Plaintiff 

cannot be sure whether future representations on the label are truthful. 

10. Plaintiff Michelle Quintero is an individual consumer, who, at all times 

material hereto, was a resident of Los Angeles County, California.  During the class 

period, she purchased the Products in California.  On several occasions between November 

2016 and April 2017, she purchased the Grisi Regenerative Aloe Vera Natural Soap and 

the Grisi Lightening Mother of Pearl Soap at a Walmart in Rosemead, California.   

11. Ms. Quintero purchased the Products because she read the packaging, which 

represented that the Products are “Natural”.  Ms. Quintero relied on the Defendants’ false, 

misleading, and deceptive representations that the Products are “Natural”.  Had she known 

the truth – that the representations she relied upon in making her purchase were false, 

misleading, and deceptive – She would not have purchased the Products or paid as much as 

she did for them.  If the Products were actually "Natural," as represented on the Products’ 
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labels, Plaintiff would purchase the Products in the immediate future.  However, Plaintiff 

cannot be sure whether future representations on the label are truthful.  

    Defendants 

12. Defendant Midway is a corporation organized and existing under the laws of 

the State of Texas with its principal place of business in Houston, Texas.  Defendant 

markets, advertises, and distributes products throughout the United States.   

13. Midway describes its sales strategy in the following manner: “Midway 

provides its suppliers and merchandisers with a comprehensive Hispanic HBC distribution 

support strategy that includes marketing & promotions, direct sales merchandising, 

distribution & logistics, and a full suite of leading Hispanic Health & Beauty Care 

products.”1   

14. Defendant Grisi USA is a corporation organized and existing under the laws 

of the State of Texas with its principal place of business in Dallas, Texas.  Upon 

information and belief, Grisi USA is a subsidiary of Grisi Hnos SA De CV, a 

pharmaceutical and chemical company based in Mexico, which manufactures the Products.   

15. Defendants Grisi USA and Midway are together responsible for labeling, 

marketing, advertising, and distributing Grisi Products in the United States, including the 

soap Products at issue.   

16. Defendants Grisi USA and Midway authorized the false, misleading, and 

deceptive advertisements, labels, and packaging for the Products.  

 

                                              
1 See http://www.midwayimporting.com/about 
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17. Grisi USA and Midway have conducted the business practices described 

herein through an interrelated network of companies that have common employees, 

ownership, and business functions.  

18. In 2013, Grisi Hnos SA De CV acquired 51% of Midway in order to 

strengthen its presence in the United States in order to have greater control of the 

marketing and distribution of its products (including soap products) in the United States. 2   

19. At least since that time, Grisi USA and Midway have operated as a common 

enterprise while engaging in the acts and practices and other violations of law alleged 

herein, including labeling, marketing and advertising the Products as “Natural.”   

20. For example, Mr. Oliver Pegueros, Business Manager for “Grisi USA at 

Midway Importing, Inc,” based in Houston, Texas, is responsible for “all business and 

marketing aspects of Grisi brands in the U.S.” 3   

21. Additionally, Grisi Hnos SA De CV’s Strategic Planning Director, Alejandro 

Grisi, is also employed as a director with Midway. 4    

                                              
2 See http://www.elfinanciero.com.mx/empresas/grisi-inicio-como-botanica-y-ya-exporta-

a-25-paises (translated using Google Translate).   

See https://www.entrepreneur.com/article/257581(Describing an interview with Mauricio 
Alvarez, director of planning in Grisi, in which Alvarez states: "The company decided to be a 
shareholder of Midway, with headquarters in Houston, in order to have greater control of the 
distribution, presentation and placement of soaps and beauty products in the commercial chains 
serving 20 million Latinos.”) (translated using Google Translate).   

3 See Exhibit 1, LinkdIn page for Oliver Pegueros, Business Manager for “Grisi USA at 
Midway Importing, Inc.”  Mr. Pegueros describes his job as a “market strategist” who has 
integrated “powerful marketing strategies,” is responsible for overseeing “all business and 
marketing aspects of Grisi brands in the U.S.” and is currently expanding the Grisi family of 
brands throughout the U.S.A. 

4 See https://industrytoday.com/article/naturally-balanced/; 
http://www.hoovers.com/company-information/cs/company 
profile.midway_importing_inc.1d2280a6e654f581.html 
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FACTUAL BACKGROUND 

22. Consumers have become increasingly concerned about the effects of 

synthetic and chemical ingredients in food, cleaning products, bath and beauty products 

and everyday household products.  Companies such as the Defendants have capitalized on 

consumers’ desire for purportedly “natural products.”  Indeed, consumers are willing to 

pay, and have paid, a premium for products branded “natural” over products that contain 

synthetic ingredients.  In 2015, sales of natural products grew 9.5% to $180 billion.5  

Reasonable consumers, including Plaintiffs and Class Members, value natural products for 

important reasons, including the belief that they are safer and healthier than alternative 

products that are not represented as natural.   

23. Despite the Products containing a number of synthetic ingredients, 

Defendants market the Products as being “Natural”.  The Products’ labeling is depicted 

below:  

 

 

                                              
5 Natural Products Industry Sales up 9.5% to $180bn Says NBJ, FOOD NAVIGATOR, 

http://www.foodnavigator-usa.com/Markets/EXPO-WEST-trendspotting-organics-natural-
claims/(page)/6; see also  Shoshanna Delventhal, Study Shows Surge in Demand for “Natural” 
Products, INVESTOPEDIA (February 22, 2017), 
http://www.investopedia.com/articles/investing/022217/study-shows-surge-demand-natural-
products.asp (Study by Kline Research indicated that in 2016, the personal care market reached 
9% growth in the U.S. and 8% in the U.K. The trend-driven natural and organic personal care 
industry is on track to be worth $25.1 million by 2025); Natural living: The next frontier for 
growth? [NEXT Forecast 2017], NEW HOPE NTWORK (December 20, 2016), 
http://www.newhope.com/beauty-and-lifestyle/natural-living-next-frontier-growth-next-forecast-
2017.  
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    Grisi Regenerative Aloe Vera Natural Soap 

 

Synthetic Ingredients:  

Sodium Lauryl Sulfate 
Citric Acid  

Titanium Dioxide  
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Grisi Balance Oat Natural Soap 

 

 

Synthetic Ingredients:  

Sodium Lauryl Sulfate 
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Grisi Lightening Mother of Pearl Natural Soap 

 

Synthetic Ingredients:  

Sodium Lauryl Sulfate 
Calcium Carbonate  
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Grisi Moisturizer Donkey’s Milk Natural Soap 

 

Synthetic Ingredients:  

Sodium Lauryl Sulfate 
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24. Defendants’ representations that the Products are “Natural” is false, 

misleading, and deceptive because the Products contain multiple ingredients that are, as 

explained below, synthetic.   

a. Sodium Lauryl Sulfate is a synthetic additive as stated in C.F.R. 172.822. It 

is an active ingredient prepared by sulfation of lauryl alcohol, followed by 

neutralization with sodium carbonate. 6 

b. Calcium Carbonate is produced from calcium hydroxide, calcium chloride, 

or as a byproduct in the lime soda process.  Federal regulations recognize 

calcium hydroxide as a synthetic compound (and the FDA has declared that 

calcium chloride renders a food no longer “natural.”)7  The lime soda process 

employs hazardous and synthetic substances and requires processing 

techniques so excessive so as to render the finished product unnatural.  In 

fact, the EPA has promulgated regulations specifically addressing the 

environmental impact of calcium carbonate produced through the lime 

process and by recovery from the Solvay waste products.  Additionally, 

when used in drugs, calcium carbonate is listed as a synthetic compound by 

federal regulation. 

c. Titanium Dioxide is a color additive that is synthetically prepared Ti02, free 

from admixture with other substances. 8 

                                              
6 http://www3.epa.gov/pesticides/chem_search/reg_actions/reregistration/red_G-52_1-Sep-

93.pdf 
7 See FDA Warning Letter to Karl A. Hirzel, Hirzel Canning Co., (Aug. 29, 2001). 
8 http://www.accessdata.fda.gov/scripts/cdrh/cfdocs/cfcfr/cfrsearch.cfm?fr=73.575 
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d. Citric Acid is (2-hydroxy-propane-1, 2,3-tricarboxylic acid) is a synthetic 

substance. While the chemical’s name has the word “citric” in it, citric acid 

is no longer extracted from the citrus fruit but industrially manufactured by 

fermenting certain genetically mutant strains of the black mold fungus, 

Aspergillus niger.  

25. Given the presence of these synthetic and artificial ingredients in the 

Products, Defendants’ representations that they are “Natural” are deceptive, false, and 

misleading.   

26. Congress has defined "synthetic" to mean “a substance that is formulated or 

manufactured by a chemical process or by a process that chemically changes a substance 

extracted from naturally occurring plants, animals, or mineral sources . . . .” 7 U.S.C. § 

6502 (21). 

27. Surveys and other market research, including expert testimony Plaintiffs 

intend to introduce, will demonstrate that the term “natural” is misleading to a reasonable 

consumer because the reasonable consumer believes that the term “natural,” when used to 

describe goods such as the Products, means that the goods are free of synthetic ingredients.  

28. Consumers lack the meaningful ability to test or independently ascertain or 

verify whether a product is natural, especially at the point of sale.  Consumers would not 

know the true nature of the ingredients merely by reading the ingredients label.   

29. Discovering that the ingredients are not natural and are actually synthetic 

requires a scientific investigation and knowledge of chemistry beyond that of the average 

consumer.  That is why, even though the ingredients listed above are identified on the back 
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of the Products’ packaging in the ingredients listed, the reasonable consumer would not 

understand – nor are they expected to understand - that these ingredients are synthetic.   

30. Moreover, the reasonable consumer is not expected or required to scour the 

ingredients list on the back of the Products in order to confirm or debunk Defendants’ 

prominent front-of-the-Products claims, representations, and warranties that the Products 

are “Natural”. 

31. Defendants did not disclose that the above listed ingredients are synthetic 

ingredients.  A reasonable consumer understands Defendants’ “Natural” claims to mean 

that the Products are “Natural” and do not contain synthetic ingredients. 

32. Defendants’ representations that the Products are “Natural”, induced 

consumers, including Plaintiffs and Class Members, to pay a premium to purchase the 

Products.  Plaintiffs and Class Members relied on Defendants’ false and misleading 

misrepresentations in purchasing the Products at a premium price above comparable 

alternatives that are not represented to be “Natural”.  If not for Defendants’ 

misrepresentations, Plaintiffs and Class Members would not have been willing to purchase 

the Products at a premium price.  Accordingly, they have suffered an injury as a result of 

Defendants’ misrepresentations. 

33. Consumers rely on label representations and information in making 

purchasing decisions. 

34. The marketing of the Products as “Natural” in a prominent location on the 

labels of all of the Products, throughout the Class Period, evidences Defendants’ awareness 

that “Natural” claims are material to consumers. 
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35. Defendants’ deceptive representations and omissions are material in that a 

reasonable person would attach importance to such information and would be induced to 

act upon such information in making purchase decisions. 

36. Plaintiffs and the Class members reasonably relied to their detriment on 

Defendants’ misleading representations and omissions. 

37. Defendants’ false, misleading, and deceptive misrepresentations and 

omissions are likely to continue to deceive and mislead reasonable consumers and the 

general public, as they have already deceived and misled Plaintiffs and the Class members. 

38. In making the false, misleading, and deceptive representations and omissions 

described herein, Defendants knew and intended that consumers would pay a premium for 

Products labeled “Natural” over comparable products not so labeled.  

39. As an immediate, direct, and proximate result of Defendants’ false, 

misleading, and deceptive representations and omissions, Defendants injured Plaintiffs and 

the Class members in that they: 

a. Paid a sum of money for Products that were not what Defendants 
represented; 

 
b. Paid a premium price for Products that were not what Defendants 

represented; 
 

c. Were deprived of the benefit of the bargain because the Products they 
purchased were different from what Defendants warranted; 

 
d. Were deprived of the benefit of the bargain because the Products they 

purchased had less value than what Defendants represented; and 

 
e. Used a product that was of a different quality than what Defendants 

promised. 
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40. Had Defendants not made the false, misleading, and deceptive 

representations and omissions, Plaintiffs and the Class members would not have been 

willing to pay the same amount for the Products they purchased, and, consequently, 

Plaintiffs and the Class members would not have been willing to purchase the Products. 

41. Plaintiffs and the Class members paid for Products that were “Natural” but 

received Products that were not “Natural”. The Products Plaintiffs and the Class members 

received were worth less than the Products for which they paid. 

42. Based on Defendants’ misleading and deceptive representations, Defendants 

were able to, and did, charge a premium price for the Products over the cost of competitive 

products not bearing a “Natural” label. 

43. Consequently, Plaintiffs and the Class members have suffered injury in fact 

and lost money as a result of Defendants’ wrongful conduct. 

CLASS ALLEGATIONS 
 

44. Plaintiffs bring this matter on behalf of themselves and those similarly 

situated.  As detailed at length in this Complaint, Defendants orchestrated deceptive 

marketing and labeling practices.  Defendants’ customers were uniformly impacted by and 

exposed to this misconduct.  Accordingly, this Complaint is well situated for classwide 

resolution, including injunctive relief.   

45. The Class is defined as all consumers who purchased the Products anywhere 

in the United States during the Class Period (the “Class”). 
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46. Plaintiffs also seeks certification, to the extent necessary or appropriate, of a 

subclass of individuals who purchased the Products in the State of California at any time 

during the Class Period (the “California Subclass”). 

47. The Class and  the California Subclassshall be referred to collectively 

throughout the Complaint as the “Class.” 

48. The Class is properly brought and should be maintained as a class action 

under Rule 23(a), satisfying the class action prerequisites of numerosity, commonality, 

typicality, adequacy and superiority because: 

49. Numerosity: Class Members are so numerous that joinder of all members is 

impracticable.  Plaintiffs believe that there are thousands of consumers who are Class 

Members described above who have been damaged by Defendants’ deceptive and 

misleading practices.   

50. Commonality: The questions of law and fact common to the Class Members, 

which predominate over any questions which may affect individual Class Members, 

include, but are not limited to:  

a. Whether Defendants are responsible for the conduct alleged herein which 

was uniformly directed at all consumers who purchased the Products; 

b. Whether Defendants’ misconduct set forth in this Complaint 

demonstrates that Defendants have engaged in unfair, fraudulent, or 

unlawful business practices with respect to the advertising, marketing, 

and sale of their Products; 
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c. Whether Defendants made false and/or misleading statements to the Class 

and the public concerning the contents of their Products; 

d. Whether Defendants’ false and misleading statements concerning their 

Products were likely to deceive the public; 

e. Whether Plaintiffs and the Class are entitled to injunctive relief; 

f. Whether Plaintiffs and the Class are entitled to money damages under the 

same causes of action as the other Class Members. 

These issues predominate over individual issues.  This controversy will largely turn on 

Defendants’ uniform behavior in misrepresenting the Products to the Class which will be 

evaluated under an objective “reasonable person” standard.  Individual inquiries into the 

conduct of members of the Class will not be necessary.  

51. Typicality: Each Plaintiff is a member of the national Class.  Plaintiffs 

Prudencio and Quintero are members of the California Subclass.   Plaintiffs’ claims are 

typical of the claims of each Class Member in that every member of the Class was 

susceptible to the same deceptive, misleading conduct and purchased the Defendants’ 

Products.  Plaintiffs are entitled to relief under the same causes of action as the other Class 

Members. 

52. Adequacy: Plaintiffs are adequate Class representatives because their 

interests do not conflict with the interests of the Class Members they seek to represent; 

their consumer fraud claims are common to all members of the Class and they have a 

strong interest in vindicating their rights; they have retained counsel competent and 

experienced in complex class action litigation and they intend to vigorously prosecute this 
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action.  Plaintiffs have no interests which conflict with those of the Class.  The Class 

Members’ interests will be fairly and adequately protected by Plaintiffs and their counsel.  

The Class is properly brought and should be maintained as a class action under Rule 23(b).  

Pursuant to Rule 23(b)(3), common issues of law and fact predominate over any other 

questions affecting only individual members of the Class.  The Class issues fully 

predominate over any individual issue because no inquiry into individual conduct is 

necessary; all that is required is a narrow focus on Defendants’ deceptive and misleading 

marketing and labeling practices.   

53. Superiority: A class action is superior to the other available methods for the 

fair and efficient adjudication of this controversy because: 

a. The joinder of thousands of individual Class Members is impracticable, 

cumbersome, unduly burdensome, and a waste of judicial and/or litigation 

resources; 

b. The individual claims of the Class Members are modest compared with the 

expense of litigating the claim, thereby making it impracticable, unduly 

burdensome, and expensive—if not totally impossible—to justify individual 

actions; 

c. When Defendants’ liability has been adjudicated, all Class Members’ claims 

can be determined by the Court and administered efficiently in a manner far 

less burdensome and expensive than if it were attempted through filing, 

discovery, and trial of all individual cases; 

Case 2:18-cv-01469-AB-RAO   Document 34   Filed 09/11/18   Page 19 of 32   Page ID #:303



 

 20  
 

  
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

d. This class action will promote orderly, efficient, expeditious, and appropriate 

adjudication and administration of Class claims; 

e. Plaintiffs know of no difficulty to be encountered in the management of this 

action that would preclude its maintenance as a class action; 

f. This class action will assure uniformity of decisions among Class Members;  

g. The Class is readily definable and prosecution of this action as a class action 

will eliminate the possibility of repetitious litigation; 

h. Class Members’ interests in individually controlling the prosecution of 

separate actions is outweighed by their interest in efficient resolution by 

single class action; and 

i. It would be desirable to concentrate in this single venue the litigation of all 

plaintiffs who were induced by Defendants’ uniform false advertising to 

purchase its Products as being “Natural.” 

54. Accordingly, this Class is properly brought and should be maintained as a 

class action under Rule 23(b)(3) because questions of law or fact common to Class 

Members predominate over any questions affecting only individual members, and because 

a class action is superior to other available methods for fairly and efficiently adjudicating 

this controversy. 

INJUNCTIVE CLASS RELIEF 

55. Rules 23(b)(1) and (2) contemplate a class action for purposes of seeking 

class-wide injunctive relief.  Here, the Defendants have engaged in conduct resulting in 

misleading consumers about ingredients in its Products.  Since Defendants’ conduct has 
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been uniformly directed at all consumers in the United States, and the conduct continues 

presently, injunctive relief on a class-wide basis is a viable and suitable solution to remedy 

Defendants’ continuing misconduct. Plaintiffs do not know if they can rely on Defendants’ 

label claims in the future, but would purchase the Products again if the ingredients were 

changed so that they indeed were “Natural”.  

56. The injunctive Class is properly brought and should be maintained as a class 

action under Rule 23(a), and the injunctive Class satisfies the class action prerequisites of 

numerosity, commonality, typicality, and adequacy because: 

a. Numerosity: Individual joinder of the injunctive Class Members would be 

wholly impracticable.  Defendants’ Products have been purchased by 

thousands of people throughout the United States; 

b. Commonality: Questions of law and fact are common to members of the 

Class.  Defendants’ misconduct was uniformly directed at all consumers.  

Thus, all members of the Class have a common cause against Defendants to 

stop its misleading conduct through an injunction.  Since the issues presented 

by this injunctive Class deal exclusively with Defendants’ misconduct, 

resolution of these questions would necessarily be common to the entire 

Class.  Moreover, there are common questions of law and fact inherent in the 

resolution of the proposed injunctive class, including, inter alia: 

i. Resolution of the issues presented in the 23(b)(3) class; 

ii. Whether members of the Class will continue to suffer harm by 

virtue of Defendants’ deceptive product marketing and labeling; and 
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iii. Whether, on equitable grounds, Defendants should be prevented 

from continuing to deceptively mislabel their Products as being 

“Natural”. 

c. Typicality: Plaintiffs’ claims are typical of the claims of the injunctive Class 

because their claims arise from the same course of conduct (i.e. Defendants’ 

deceptive and misleading marketing, labeling, and advertising practices).  

Plaintiffs are typical representatives of the Class because, like all members of 

the injunctive Class, they purchased Defendants’ Products which were sold 

unfairly and deceptively to consumers throughout the United States. 

d. Adequacy: Plaintiffs will fairly and adequately represent and protect the 

interests of the injunctive Class.  Their consumer protection claims are 

common to all members of the injunctive Class and they have a strong 

interest in vindicating their rights.  In addition, Plaintiffs and the Class are 

represented by counsel who is competent and experienced in both consumer 

protection and class action litigation. 

57. The injunctive Class is properly brought and should be maintained as a class 

action under Rule 23(b)(2) because Plaintiffs seek injunctive relief on behalf of the Class 

Members on grounds generally applicable to the entire injunctive Class.  Certification 

under Rule 23(b)(2) is appropriate because Defendants have acted or refused to act in a 

manner that applies generally to the injunctive Class (i.e. Defendants have marketed their 

Products using the same misleading and deceptive labeling to all of the Class Members).  

Any final injunctive relief or declaratory relief would benefit the entire injunctive Class as 
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Defendants would be prevented from continuing its misleading and deceptive marketing 

practices and would be required to honestly disclose to consumers the nature of the 

contents of its Products. Plaintiffs would purchase the Products again if the ingredients 

were changed so that they indeed were “Natural”. 

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 
VIOLATION OF CAL. BUS. & PROF. CODE § 17200, ET SEQ. 

(Brought by Plaintiffs Prudencio and Quintero on behalf of the California Subclass) 
 

58. Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each and every allegation contained in all the 

foregoing paragraphs as if fully set forth herein. 

59. Plaintiffs Prudencio and Quintero have standing to pursue this claim under 

California’s Unfair Competition Law (“UCL”) because they suffered an injury-in-fact and 

lost money as a result of Defendants’ unfair practices.  Specifically, they expended more 

money in the transaction than they otherwise would have due to Defendants’ conduct.   

60. Advertising and labeling the Products as “Natural” when they contain 

synthetic ingredients constitutes a course of unfair conduct within the meaning of Cal. Civ. 

Code § 17200, et seq. 

61. The conduct of the Defendants harms the interests of consumers and market 

competition.  There is no valid justification for Defendants’ conduct. 

62. Defendants engaged in unlawful business acts and practices by breaching 

implied and express warranties, and violating the Consumers Legal Remedies Act, Cal. 

Civ. Code § 1750, et seq. 

63. Defendants engaged in fraudulent business practices by knowingly 

misrepresenting the Products as “Natural” when they contain synthetic ingredients.  Such 
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practices are devoid of utility and outweighed by the gravity of harm to Plaintiffs 

Prudencio and Quintero and the California Subclass who lost money or property by paying 

for the defective product.  

64. Each of Defendants’ unfair, unlawful and fraudulent practices enumerated 

above was the direct and proximate cause of financial injury to Plaintiffs Prudencio and 

Quintero and the Class. Defendants has unjustly benefitted as a result of its wrongful 

conduct. Plaintiffs Prudencio and Quintero and the California Class members are 

accordingly entitled to have Defendants disgorge and restore to Plaintiffs Prudencio and 

Quintero and California Class members all monies wrongfully obtained by Defendants as a 

result of the conduct as alleged herein. 

65. Pursuant to section 17203 of the California Business and Professions Code, 

Plaintiffs Prudencio and Quintero and the Class seek an order of this Court enjoining 

Defendants from continuing to engage in unfair, unlawful and deceptive practices and any 

other act prohibited by law, including the acts set forth herein. 

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION 
VIOLATION OF CAL. CIV. CODE § 1750, ET SEQ. 

(Brought by Plaintiffs Prudencio and Quintero on Behalf of the  
California Subclass) 

 
66. Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each and every allegation contained in all the 

foregoing paragraphs as if fully set forth herein. 

67. The Consumers Legal Remedies Act (“CLRA”) was enacted to protect 

consumers against unfair and deceptive business practices.  The CLRA applies to 

Defendants’ acts and practices because the Act covers transactions involving the sale of 

goods to consumers. 
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68. Plaintiffs Prudencio and Quintero and members of the California Subclass 

members are “consumers” within the meaning of section 1761(d) of the California Civil 

Code, and they engaged in “transactions” within the meaning of sections 1761(e) and 1770 

of the California Civil Code, including the purchases of the Products. 

69. The Products are “goods” under Cal. Civ. Code §1761(a). 

70. Defendants’ unfair and deceptive business practices were intended to and did 

result in the sale of the Products. 

71. Defendants violated the CLRA by engaging in the following unfair and 

deceptive practices: 

(1) Representing that Products have characteristics, uses or benefits that they do not 

have, in violation of section 1770(a)(5); 

(2) Representing that Products are of a particular standard, quality, or grade when 

they are not, in violation of section 1770(a)(7); and 

(3) Advertising Products with the intent not to sell them as advertised, in violation 

of section 1770(a)(9). 

72. If Plaintiffs Prudencio and Quintero and the California Class members had 

known this fact, they would not have purchased the Products at all or purchased the 

Products at the prices they did. 

73. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ conduct, Plaintiffs Prudencio 

and Quintero and the California Class suffered injury.  

74. Pursuant to California Civil Code § 1782(a), Plaintiffs Prudencio and 

Quintero sent Defendant Midway a CLRA notice letter via certified mail, return receipt 
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requested, which was delivered on or around July 19, 2017, advising Defendant that it is in 

violation of the CLRA and must correct, repair, replace or otherwise rectify the goods 

alleged to be in violation of § 1770. 

75. As of the date of this filing, Plaintiffs have not received a response. 

76. Accordingly, Plaintiffs seek damages under the CLRA in an amount to be 

determined at trial. 

77. With respect to Defendant Grisi USA, at this time, Plaintiffs seek only 

injunctive relief, pursuant to the CLRA.  On or around September 11, 2018, Plaintiffs sent 

Defendant Midway a CLRA notice letter via certified mail, return receipt requested, 

advising Defendant that it is in violation of the CLRA and must correct, repair, replace or 

otherwise rectify the goods alleged to be in violation of § 1770.  If Defendant fails to 

properly compensate Plaintiffs and the class, Plaintiffs will seek leave to amend this cause 

of action to assert monetary Damages claims against Grisi USA.  

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION 
BREACH OF EXPRESS WARRANTY 

(Brought by Plaintiffs On Behalf of all Class Members) 
 

78. Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each and every allegation contained in the 

foregoing paragraphs as if fully set forth herein. 

79. Defendants provided the Plaintiffs and Class Members with an express 

warranty in the form of written affirmations of fact promising and representing that the 

Products are “Natural”.  

80. The above affirmations of fact were not couched as “belief” or “opinion,” 

and were not “generalized statements of quality not capable of proof or disproof.” 
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81. These affirmations of fact became part of the basis for the bargain and were 

material to the Plaintiffs’ and Class Members’ transactions. 

82. Plaintiffs and Class Members reasonably relied upon the Defendants’ 

affirmations of fact and justifiably acted in ignorance of the material facts omitted or 

concealed when they decided to buy Defendants’ Products. 

83. Within a reasonable time after they knew or should have known of 

Defendants’ breach, Plaintiffs, on behalf of themselves and Class Members, placed 

Defendants on notice of its breach, giving Defendants an opportunity to cure their breach, 

which they refused to do. 

84. Defendants breached the express warranty because the Products are not 

“Natural” because they contain synthetic ingredients.   

85. Defendants’ conduct has breached the express warranty laws of all states, 

including California.   

86. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ breach of express warranty, 

Plaintiffs and Class Members were damaged in the amount of the price they paid for the 

Products, in an amount to be proven at trial. 

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION 
VIOLATION OF THE MAGNUSON-MOSS 
 WARRANTY ACT, 15 U.S.C. § 2301 et seq. 

(Brought by Plaintiffs on Behalf of All Class Members) 
 

87. Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each and every allegation contained in the 

foregoing paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.  

88. Plaintiffs bring this claim individually and on behalf of all members of the 

Class. Upon certification, the Class will consist of more than 100 named Plaintiffs. 

Case 2:18-cv-01469-AB-RAO   Document 34   Filed 09/11/18   Page 27 of 32   Page ID #:311



 

 28  
 

  
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

89. The Magnuson-Moss Warranty Act provides a federal remedy for consumers 

who have been damaged by the failure of a supplier or warrantor to comply with any 

obligation under a written warranty or implied warranty, or other various obligations 

established under the Magnuson-Moss Warranty Act, 15 U.S.C. § 2301 et seq. 

90. The Products are “consumer products” within the meaning of the Magnuson-

Moss Warranty Act, 15 U.S.C. § 2301(1). 

91. Plaintiffs and other members of the Class are “consumers” within the 

meaning of the Magnuson-Moss Warranty Act, 15 U.S.C. § 2301(3). 

92. Defendants are “suppliers” and “warrantors” within the meaning of the 

Magnuson-Moss Warranty Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 2301(4) & 2301(5). 

93. Defendants represented in writing that the Products are “Natural”.   

94. These statements were made in connection with the sale of the Products and 

relate to the nature of the Products and affirm and promise that the Products are as 

represented and defect free and, as such, are “written warranties” within the meaning of the 

Magnuson-Moss Warranty Act, 15 U.S.C. § 2301(6)(A). 

95. As alleged herein, Defendants breached the written warranty by selling 

consumers Products that are not “Natural”. The Products do not conform to the 

Defendants’ written warranty and therefore violates the Magnuson-Moss Warranty Act, 15 

U.S.C. § 2301 et seq.  Consequently, Plaintiffs and the other members of the Class have 

suffered injury and are entitled to damages in an amount to be proven at trial. 
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FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION 
VIOLATION OF STATE CONSUMER PROTECTION STATUTES 

(Brought by Plaintiffs on Behalf of all Class Members) 
 

96. Defendants violated the unfair and deceptive acts and practices laws of all 

states by representing that the Products are “Natural”.  

97. Contrary to Defendants’ representations, the Products are not “Natural”.  

98. Defendants’ misrepresentations were material to Plaintiffs’ and Class 

Members’ decision to pay a premium for the Products.  

99. Defendants made their untrue and/or misleading statements and 

representations willfully, wantonly, and with reckless disregard for the truth. 

100.  As a result of Defendants’ violations of the states unfair and deceptive 

practices laws, Plaintiffs and Class Members paid a premium for the Products. 

101. Pursuant to the unfair and deceptive practices laws of all states, Plaintiffs and 

Class Members are entitled to recover compensatory damages, restitution, punitive and 

special damages including but not limited to treble damages, reasonable attorneys’ fees 

and costs and other injunctive or declaratory relief as deemed appropriate or permitted 

pursuant to the relevant law. 

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION 
BREACH OF IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTIBILITY 

(Brought by Plaintiffs on Behalf of all Class Members) 
102. Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each and every allegation contained in the 

foregoing paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.  

103. Defendants are in the business of manufacturing, distributing, marketing and 

advertising the above listed products. 
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104. Under the Uniform Commercial Code’s implied warranty of merchantability, 

the Defendants warranted to Plaintiffs and Class Members that the Products are “Natural”. 

105. Defendants breached the implied warranty of merchantability in that 

Defendants’ Products’ ingredients deviate from the label and product description, and 

reasonable consumers expecting a product that conforms to its label would not accept the 

Defendants’ Products if they knew that they actually contained synthetic ingredients, that 

are not “Natural”.  

106. Within a reasonable amount of time after the Plaintiffs discovered that the 

Products contain synthetic ingredients, Plaintiffs notified the Defendants of such breach. 

107. The inability of the Defendants’ Products to meet the label description was 

wholly due to the Defendants’ fault and without Plaintiffs’ or Class Members’ fault or 

neglect, and was solely due to the Defendants’ manufacture and distribution of the 

Products to the public. 

108. As a result of the foregoing, Plaintiffs and Class Members have been 

damaged in the amount paid for the Defendants’ Products, together with interest thereon 

from the date of purchase. 

JURY DEMAND 
 

 Plaintiffs demand a trial by jury on all issues. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, on behalf of themselves and the Class, pray for judgment as 

follows: 
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(a) Declaring this action to be a proper class action and certifying Plaintiffs as the 

representatives of the Class under Rule 23 of the FRCP; and Plaintiffs Prudencio 

and Quintero as representatives of the California Subclass;    

(b) Entering preliminary and permanent injunctive relief against Defendant, directing 

Defendants to correct their practices and to comply consumer protection laws 

nationwide, including California consumer protection laws; 

(c) Awarding monetary, compensatory, statutory and punitive damages;  

(d) Awarding Plaintiffs and Class Members their costs and expenses incurred in this 

action, including reasonable allowance of fees for Plaintiffs’ attorneys and experts, 

and reimbursement of Plaintiffs’ expenses; and  

(e) Granting such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.  

 
Dated:  September 11, 2018 

SHOOP A PROFESSIONAL LAW CORPORATION 
                                                         

David R. Shoop /s/  
By: __________________________________ 

David R. Shoop, Esq., SBN 220576 
Thomas S. Alch, Esq., SBN 136860 

350 S. Beverly Drive 
Suite 330 

Beverly Hills, CA 90212 
Tel: (310) 277-1700 
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THE SULTZER LAW GROUP P.C. 
    

                                 Jason P. Sultzer /s/   
By: __________________________________ 

Jason P. Sultzer, Esq. 
Joseph Lipari, Esq. 

Adam Gonnelli, Esq.  
85 Civic Center Plaza, Suite 104 

Poughkeepsie, NY 12601 
Tel: (845) 483-7100 
Fax: (888) 749-7747 

sultzerj@thesultzerlawgroup.com 
 
 

LEEDS BROWN LAW, P.C. 
 

                                                                       Jeffrey Brown /s/ 
By: __________________________________ 

Jeffrey Brown, Esq. 
One Old Country Road, Suite 347 

Carle Place, NY 11514 
Tel: (516) 873-9550 

jbrown@leedsbrownlaw.com  
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NY Attorney: New
Clients

New clients are waiting for
a New York attorney. View

their cases today!

Learn more

NY CLE - Less than
$20

Instant Online CLE,
DVDs, CDs Now! Print NY

CLE Affidavits Instantly

Learn more

Experience

Business Manager Grisi USA
Midway Importing, Inc.
Jan 2016 – Present · 2 yrs 9 mos
Houston, Texas Area
Oversee all business and marketing aspects of Grisi brands in the U.S. (Manzanilla, Ricitos de Oro,
Aloe Vera, Sulfur, Maja, etc) to increase revenue and market share.

Director of Operations and Business Development
Bomuca International Corporation
Mar 2013 – Dec 2015 · 2 yrs 10 mos
San Diego, CA
Nutraceutical company that commercializes groundbreaking health care products. 
 
Accomplishments and duties: 
... See more

Product Registration/Buying Departments Summer Intern
PriceSmart
Jun 2012 – Sep 2012 · 4 mos
Greater San Diego Area
Membership warehouse club operator in Central America and the Caribbean. 
 
Accomplishments: 
... See more

National Sales Manager

Vivioptal Vitamins -
Multiminerals and…

PriceSmart.com

Show less 

Messaging  Messaging  Messaging  Messaging  Messaging  Messaging  

1 Free Upgrade
to Premium

1 Free Upgrade
to Premium

1 Free Upgrade
to Premium

1 Free Upgrade
to Premium

1 Free Upgrade
to Premium

1 Free Upgrade
to Premium

Case 2:18-cv-01469-AB-RAO   Document 34-1   Filed 09/11/18   Page 3 of 7   Page ID #:319

https://www.linkedin.com/ads/start?src=en-all-ad-li-ads_by_li&trk=ads_by_li&utm_medium=ad&utm_source=li&utm_campaign=ads_by_li
https://www.linkedin.com/csp/cat?v=1&action=click&trk=CwEAAAFlxGHbphxWdxywL4sprhqvHdSiBSEK0I-BOfPm6uh8bRHRovR-hOmebgL0WtW2oit3-8rMCctAPSJeFGFBbg_oDGEphjavZIl_IY23OCEvNQDDAEb-bU3Uj1dW59lSLXD8wgaLjL5f36GuvCQAmDHHPrO0XX4G4hZMKq7uFb-ZGl6Yhj_nkRWttcyay8avJ1Nb06s09DpVeGoAoFQA0rJjWIwSkYdC3CuMsjNGt4DXUri8T0l-SKKfm7720TQ3swh-21xRBoCd39S1Uw3svFFVzAzXvlvqz-Is8wF3m-mq_rCeppot8s560z30yotSS3vAFXqASKfoO3MuRTtvNcYoX82rf6qwMNDDkp2Xi9I4usNSJrMbiSLscsxkSSlJ5SA3YZhFFfIshVoh77FSa4xE3cIUPTH91l2eJrryAI_YPNZlNMzrrdy8yxxAO3cJHwEagf7RwPjGASoEETFTaxu750QIRpPageJcohPBJ2OKmFJLoadIgxasKUSSYTESAlRS4QSRb1nUzrmrmFdquRTDsilgrVHxcTn6k2q6ET0ueh4GBq1PZ4e1hUFOaGHFFM8vvdhz820RJRjVxyOk9XhTS7WBeMqrC00x70VEpEIErhZKQlfkQt-4dIRupkpHILMpY0krINK9vKwTiuF7hSDhlZ0b-pa9V20d3MPdr56ErCk61dwUbvPTcRJp4vEIM97LQerm28S2OO67WB6P46jmZF6VayFiP_RWkTZEB3SEc0L6nOyOIlb5c1XfI5nKoXS2k7CAEDkm2TEwKlrfvP6jTEpwxMPxHk__E0fZQCIy6Fxz2uHSWsYxaE5OGJPtyQ3ouHcuYKe7BDJsPBznnC_-rkkF614vbZlUEFKVIh0uOmrzEZSCwrulGyntBm5DXFwUogWJTwmFv38uOLl8T6ye2CiLFqnH52yTv9IHkCcs5gJgp7iI6RrvTEqtj83eL_cwLw0I_ihisAIt7pcIfI-2X8-mzCkeykQ2s-CRrMnrLOzUbnUoKMkO61tKeJ8K4xA4FRXKbA28KXGur55CjHMOG957CnQ6FitxI6Dea5dYcOsZdmHX73O3T-rqdsv_o_LvSOhN0HsHUoO4XE8x3JY60g6FSbEo7gI5DsGv5TxcSFCjuN8kPgXoY9SBiXUoIsEfhA5cM5YSii6aCS8Zjr3R6-kPL8nPObk1do2GyXev89mbUKViQtCs_OmBshPrwiWUNAgL-aGP-h0c4wn_UVJb4kfLvrohkRV541wlcncs5sNUWzxGpMbFlYsL0d5zRUIO2fK6AfudsXrDwrLoIni0euJJ4CFwQ9Sv1ON7b5MoQmP514ecyvor_UuqPfmSYXM_IZCbsX8-fLTAzut6gvptHCxfOV4&pageKey=d_flagship3_profile_view_base
https://www.linkedin.com/csp/cat?v=1&action=click&trk=CwEAAAFlxGHbphxWdxywL4sprhqvHdSiBSEK0I-BOfPm6uh8bRHRovR-hOmebgL0WtW2oit3-8rMCctAPSJeFGFBbg_oDGEphjavZIl_IY23OCEvNQDDAEb-bU3Uj1dW59lSLXD8wgaLjL5f36GuvCQAmDHHPrO0XX4G4hZMKq7uFb-ZGl6Yhj_nkRWttcyay8avJ1Nb06s09DpVeGoAoFQA0rJjWIwSkYdC3CuMsjNGt4DXUri8T0l-SKKfm7720TQ3swh-21xRBoCd39S1Uw3svFFVzAzXvlvqz-Is8wF3m-mq_rCeppot8s560z30yotSS3vAFXqASKfoO3MuRTtvNcYoX82rf6qwMNDDkp2Xi9I4usNSJrMbiSLscsxkSSlJ5SA3YZhFFfIshVoh77FSa4xE3cIUPTH91l2eJrryAI_YPNZlNMzrrdy8yxxAO3cJHwEagf7RwPjGASoEETFTaxu750QIRpPageJcohPBJ2OKmFJLoadIgxasKUSSYTESAlRS4QSRb1nUzrmrmFdquRTDsilgrVHxcTn6k2q6ET0ueh4GBq1PZ4e1hUFOaGHFFM8vvdhz820RJRjVxyOk9XhTS7WBeMqrC00x70VEpEIErhZKQlfkQt-4dIRupkpHILMpY0krINK9vKwTiuF7hSDhlZ0b-pa9V20d3MPdr56ErCk61dwUbvPTcRJp4vEIM97LQerm28S2OO67WB6P46jmZF6VayFiP_RWkTZEB3SEc0L6nOyOIlb5c1XfI5nKoXS2k7CAEDkm2TEwKlrfvP6jTEpwxMPxHk__E0fZQCIy6Fxz2uHSWsYxaE5OGJPtyQ3ouHcuYKe7BDJsPBznnC_-rkkF614vbZlUEFKVIh0uOmrzEZSCwrulGyntBm5DXFwUogWJTwmFv38uOLl8T6ye2CiLFqnH52yTv9IHkCcs5gJgp7iI6RrvTEqtj83eL_cwLw0I_ihisAIt7pcIfI-2X8-mzCkeykQ2s-CRrMnrLOzUbnUoKMkO61tKeJ8K4xA4FRXKbA28KXGur55CjHMOG957CnQ6FitxI6Dea5dYcOsZdmHX73O3T-rqdsv_o_LvSOhN0HsHUoO4XE8x3JY60g6FSbEo7gI5DsGv5TxcSFCjuN8kPgXoY9SBiXUoIsEfhA5cM5YSii6aCS8Zjr3R6-kPL8nPObk1do2GyXev89mbUKViQtCs_OmBshPrwiWUNAgL-aGP-h0c4wn_UVJb4kfLvrohkRV541wlcncs5sNUWzxGpMbFlYsL0d5zRUIO2fK6AfudsXrDwrLoIni0euJJ4CFwQ9Sv1ON7b5MoQmP514ecyvor_UuqPfmSYXM_IZCbsX8-fLTAzut6gvptHCxfOV4&pageKey=d_flagship3_profile_view_base
https://www.linkedin.com/csp/cat?v=1&action=click&trk=CwEAAAFlxGHbphxWdxywL4sprhqvHdSiBSEK0I-BOfPm6uh8bRHRovR-hOmebgL0WtW2oit3-8rMCctAPSJeFGFBbg_oDGEphjavZIl_IY23OCEvNQDDAEb-bU3Uj1dW59lSLXD8wgaLjL5f36GuvCQAmDHHPrO0XX4G4hZMKq7uFb-ZGl6Yhj_nkRWttcyay8avJ1Nb06s09DpVeGoAoFQA0rJjWIwSkYdC3CuMsjNGt4DXUri8T0l-SKKfm7720TQ3swh-21xRBoCd39S1Uw3svFFVzAzXvlvqz-Is8wF3m-mq_rCeppot8s560z30yotSS3vAFXqASKfoO3MuRTtvNcYoX82rf6qwMNDDkp2Xi9I4usNSJrMbiSLscsxkSSlJ5SA3YZhFFfIshVoh77FSa4xE3cIUPTH91l2eJrryAI_YPNZlNMzrrdy8yxxAO3cJHwEagf7RwPjGASoEETFTaxu750QIRpPageJcohPBJ2OKmFJLoadIgxasKUSSYTESAlRS4QSRb1nUzrmrmFdquRTDsilgrVHxcTn6k2q6ET0ueh4GBq1PZ4e1hUFOaGHFFM8vvdhz820RJRjVxyOk9XhTS7WBeMqrC00x70VEpEIErhZKQlfkQt-4dIRupkpHILMpY0krINK9vKwTiuF7hSDhlZ0b-pa9V20d3MPdr56ErCk61dwUbvPTcRJp4vEIM97LQerm28S2OO67WB6P46jmZF6VayFiP_RWkTZEB3SEc0L6nOyOIlb5c1XfI5nKoXS2k7CAEDkm2TEwKlrfvP6jTEpwxMPxHk__E0fZQCIy6Fxz2uHSWsYxaE5OGJPtyQ3ouHcuYKe7BDJsPBznnC_-rkkF614vbZlUEFKVIh0uOmrzEZSCwrulGyntBm5DXFwUogWJTwmFv38uOLl8T6ye2CiLFqnH52yTv9IHkCcs5gJgp7iI6RrvTEqtj83eL_cwLw0I_ihisAIt7pcIfI-2X8-mzCkeykQ2s-CRrMnrLOzUbnUoKMkO61tKeJ8K4xA4FRXKbA28KXGur55CjHMOG957CnQ6FitxI6Dea5dYcOsZdmHX73O3T-rqdsv_o_LvSOhN0HsHUoO4XE8x3JY60g6FSbEo7gI5DsGv5TxcSFCjuN8kPgXoY9SBiXUoIsEfhA5cM5YSii6aCS8Zjr3R6-kPL8nPObk1do2GyXev89mbUKViQtCs_OmBshPrwiWUNAgL-aGP-h0c4wn_UVJb4kfLvrohkRV541wlcncs5sNUWzxGpMbFlYsL0d5zRUIO2fK6AfudsXrDwrLoIni0euJJ4CFwQ9Sv1ON7b5MoQmP514ecyvor_UuqPfmSYXM_IZCbsX8-fLTAzut6gvptHCxfOV4&pageKey=d_flagship3_profile_view_base
https://www.linkedin.com/csp/cat?v=1&action=click&trk=CwEAAAFlxGHbphxWdxywL4sprhqvHdSiBSEK0I-BOfPm6uh8bRHRovR-hOmebgL0WtW2oit3-8rMCctAPSJeFGFBbg_oDGEphjavZIl_IY23OCEvNQDDAEb-bU3Uj1dW59lSLXD8wgaLjL5f36GuvCQAmDHHPrO0XX4G4hZMKq7uFb-ZGl6Yhj_nkRWttcyay8avJ1Nb06s09DpVeGoAoFQA0rJjWIwSkYdC3CuMsjNGt4DXUri8T0l-SKKfm7720TQ3swh-21xRBoCd39S1Uw3svFFVzAzXvlvqz-Is8wF3m-mq_rCeppot8s560z30yotSS3vAFXqASKfoO3MuRTtvNcYoX82rf6qwMNDDkp2Xi9I4usNSJrMbiSLscsxkSSlJ5SA3YZhFFfIshVoh77FSa4xE3cIUPTH91l2eJrryAI_YPNZlNMzrrdy8yxxAO3cJHwEagf7RwPjGASoEETFTaxu750QIRpPageJcohPBJ2OKmFJLoadIgxasKUSSYTESAlRS4QSRb1nUzrmrmFdquRTDsilgrVHxcTn6k2q6ET0ueh4GBq1PZ4e1hUFOaGHFFM8vvdhz820RJRjVxyOk9XhTS7WBeMqrC00x70VEpEIErhZKQlfkQt-4dIRupkpHILMpY0krINK9vKwTiuF7hSDhlZ0b-pa9V20d3MPdr56ErCk61dwUbvPTcRJp4vEIM97LQerm28S2OO67WB6P46jmZF6VayFiP_RWkTZEB3SEc0L6nOyOIlb5c1XfI5nKoXS2k7CAEDkm2TEwKlrfvP6jTEpwxMPxHk__E0fZQCIy6Fxz2uHSWsYxaE5OGJPtyQ3ouHcuYKe7BDJsPBznnC_-rkkF614vbZlUEFKVIh0uOmrzEZSCwrulGyntBm5DXFwUogWJTwmFv38uOLl8T6ye2CiLFqnH52yTv9IHkCcs5gJgp7iI6RrvTEqtj83eL_cwLw0I_ihisAIt7pcIfI-2X8-mzCkeykQ2s-CRrMnrLOzUbnUoKMkO61tKeJ8K4xA4FRXKbA28KXGur55CjHMOG957CnQ6FitxI6Dea5dYcOsZdmHX73O3T-rqdsv_o_LvSOhN0HsHUoO4XE8x3JY60g6FSbEo7gI5DsGv5TxcSFCjuN8kPgXoY9SBiXUoIsEfhA5cM5YSii6aCS8Zjr3R6-kPL8nPObk1do2GyXev89mbUKViQtCs_OmBshPrwiWUNAgL-aGP-h0c4wn_UVJb4kfLvrohkRV541wlcncs5sNUWzxGpMbFlYsL0d5zRUIO2fK6AfudsXrDwrLoIni0euJJ4CFwQ9Sv1ON7b5MoQmP514ecyvor_UuqPfmSYXM_IZCbsX8-fLTAzut6gvptHCxfOV4&pageKey=d_flagship3_profile_view_base
https://www.linkedin.com/csp/cat?v=1&action=click&trk=CwEAAAFlxGHbpugZ9xBORKgTrxACalXze651hkIFgtlDr0S9YN-3BqCzxqoUcquktWW-6MvCerfxbplvKArghQm2Ok9MfpBvxqeopztJTuuZbzrW-aKz1OvOB7ekHM0xdSsNQoB6E2OrlEr_SPmLckWelrww4oyaxjOxQRjP4hj3unJlEaOuAAijtfiHz0JN930b2_WEdTLoaD1Kw00GpjEEPmquwHoSR95c-3nmyahXXxw7xpB9i5U_YvCQN8D6euvimLP_L1ai_m-nTleRVwd8DeFI-E-H7OkaZiBjTmacI2y1v1VoaGUQvWrO2RtbCE_q5haRuWQnGmuUCOrChdXTMv79JKKsj9bFtBMlQSP9dFgekMXmlf0NwkSQby9_EtEaEjWw3X-L1m_NBhjuxZYGwUif_ADDh-dz1y6x_gwLb0S4Vj6TGmAYQHLdYi1LjFb0kTeLgeIb_bcQauedhr8saGKxcfX6Wt2MpDLVL3mHoTCO_yAc2ijUWPTK8jHALxJZiXRC5CHUPBY8_9_kpnodW0X2Tg5TGju0pA-hoir-Ff-ZpqMT_heBDM0iya1gpXT-bgFMM4PTLdteo2ZpadUzMBIY9vl0tMN51nj1U1h8B7wezvo5Vz0fyK4PFeNQIvD8_XTfV1buK3uXbtXccuB_bENvgxRBo27IOn4arZHrmuD16xhX7ea_fWyxRNqoNXLJUDs2nmpRAxwWsS8EFD9PjfQ2pGNuXWtkgyIOOU9AtF7Pkyiy2wowdYfhdLE1UVONFT8HzXi-IkpGxB3WgaxAK58kleZYj7tYshWcnk4z88v_aT2KcmKwDaXFCEKmAqH1rL3RZZcExdJXOBhC7vWAqMEq-W90FGNGXfITcuTn2iYgrfg1Pm1XCiGk4ogS4NBQ4GEbR-y8k9ecU3iak7D8qRlJGB0tl7qK4YSY9lu0ySEtnSa-eB-HcIvO7KPG6HzgpyueJKptmlSJj51fB46ALhi68Cfv3SIvGmoCgIhrbyxIeWj0LuTn372IFo0xKl66gbRJaKqHoP1gscEUgC3Vd1LsZgaF8_Moao3su1C5_SccWZUNeiAXho2gJu9tuQT-jnzfyKNlXWu8sYgpmxTz-3PtqdHsVVLPcHK9eOL0JQU753EilTwUDJCKRH68kVYwLCadMutmUZTQVUGgmvfVRPkLyI3_sPX6AHqOjhpgcLkZ6F1s8TWGOxtw73Zc9gG_riennU3Rkm9FpZyrcTzmTjgJGPiESoDTzvZxxLwIQiVcaz7An56OEyF81RCGq-9jqyCmIef_kfuIFJYOZzs&pageKey=d_flagship3_profile_view_base
https://www.linkedin.com/csp/cat?v=1&action=click&trk=CwEAAAFlxGHbpugZ9xBORKgTrxACalXze651hkIFgtlDr0S9YN-3BqCzxqoUcquktWW-6MvCerfxbplvKArghQm2Ok9MfpBvxqeopztJTuuZbzrW-aKz1OvOB7ekHM0xdSsNQoB6E2OrlEr_SPmLckWelrww4oyaxjOxQRjP4hj3unJlEaOuAAijtfiHz0JN930b2_WEdTLoaD1Kw00GpjEEPmquwHoSR95c-3nmyahXXxw7xpB9i5U_YvCQN8D6euvimLP_L1ai_m-nTleRVwd8DeFI-E-H7OkaZiBjTmacI2y1v1VoaGUQvWrO2RtbCE_q5haRuWQnGmuUCOrChdXTMv79JKKsj9bFtBMlQSP9dFgekMXmlf0NwkSQby9_EtEaEjWw3X-L1m_NBhjuxZYGwUif_ADDh-dz1y6x_gwLb0S4Vj6TGmAYQHLdYi1LjFb0kTeLgeIb_bcQauedhr8saGKxcfX6Wt2MpDLVL3mHoTCO_yAc2ijUWPTK8jHALxJZiXRC5CHUPBY8_9_kpnodW0X2Tg5TGju0pA-hoir-Ff-ZpqMT_heBDM0iya1gpXT-bgFMM4PTLdteo2ZpadUzMBIY9vl0tMN51nj1U1h8B7wezvo5Vz0fyK4PFeNQIvD8_XTfV1buK3uXbtXccuB_bENvgxRBo27IOn4arZHrmuD16xhX7ea_fWyxRNqoNXLJUDs2nmpRAxwWsS8EFD9PjfQ2pGNuXWtkgyIOOU9AtF7Pkyiy2wowdYfhdLE1UVONFT8HzXi-IkpGxB3WgaxAK58kleZYj7tYshWcnk4z88v_aT2KcmKwDaXFCEKmAqH1rL3RZZcExdJXOBhC7vWAqMEq-W90FGNGXfITcuTn2iYgrfg1Pm1XCiGk4ogS4NBQ4GEbR-y8k9ecU3iak7D8qRlJGB0tl7qK4YSY9lu0ySEtnSa-eB-HcIvO7KPG6HzgpyueJKptmlSJj51fB46ALhi68Cfv3SIvGmoCgIhrbyxIeWj0LuTn372IFo0xKl66gbRJaKqHoP1gscEUgC3Vd1LsZgaF8_Moao3su1C5_SccWZUNeiAXho2gJu9tuQT-jnzfyKNlXWu8sYgpmxTz-3PtqdHsVVLPcHK9eOL0JQU753EilTwUDJCKRH68kVYwLCadMutmUZTQVUGgmvfVRPkLyI3_sPX6AHqOjhpgcLkZ6F1s8TWGOxtw73Zc9gG_riennU3Rkm9FpZyrcTzmTjgJGPiESoDTzvZxxLwIQiVcaz7An56OEyF81RCGq-9jqyCmIef_kfuIFJYOZzs&pageKey=d_flagship3_profile_view_base
https://www.linkedin.com/csp/cat?v=1&action=click&trk=CwEAAAFlxGHbpugZ9xBORKgTrxACalXze651hkIFgtlDr0S9YN-3BqCzxqoUcquktWW-6MvCerfxbplvKArghQm2Ok9MfpBvxqeopztJTuuZbzrW-aKz1OvOB7ekHM0xdSsNQoB6E2OrlEr_SPmLckWelrww4oyaxjOxQRjP4hj3unJlEaOuAAijtfiHz0JN930b2_WEdTLoaD1Kw00GpjEEPmquwHoSR95c-3nmyahXXxw7xpB9i5U_YvCQN8D6euvimLP_L1ai_m-nTleRVwd8DeFI-E-H7OkaZiBjTmacI2y1v1VoaGUQvWrO2RtbCE_q5haRuWQnGmuUCOrChdXTMv79JKKsj9bFtBMlQSP9dFgekMXmlf0NwkSQby9_EtEaEjWw3X-L1m_NBhjuxZYGwUif_ADDh-dz1y6x_gwLb0S4Vj6TGmAYQHLdYi1LjFb0kTeLgeIb_bcQauedhr8saGKxcfX6Wt2MpDLVL3mHoTCO_yAc2ijUWPTK8jHALxJZiXRC5CHUPBY8_9_kpnodW0X2Tg5TGju0pA-hoir-Ff-ZpqMT_heBDM0iya1gpXT-bgFMM4PTLdteo2ZpadUzMBIY9vl0tMN51nj1U1h8B7wezvo5Vz0fyK4PFeNQIvD8_XTfV1buK3uXbtXccuB_bENvgxRBo27IOn4arZHrmuD16xhX7ea_fWyxRNqoNXLJUDs2nmpRAxwWsS8EFD9PjfQ2pGNuXWtkgyIOOU9AtF7Pkyiy2wowdYfhdLE1UVONFT8HzXi-IkpGxB3WgaxAK58kleZYj7tYshWcnk4z88v_aT2KcmKwDaXFCEKmAqH1rL3RZZcExdJXOBhC7vWAqMEq-W90FGNGXfITcuTn2iYgrfg1Pm1XCiGk4ogS4NBQ4GEbR-y8k9ecU3iak7D8qRlJGB0tl7qK4YSY9lu0ySEtnSa-eB-HcIvO7KPG6HzgpyueJKptmlSJj51fB46ALhi68Cfv3SIvGmoCgIhrbyxIeWj0LuTn372IFo0xKl66gbRJaKqHoP1gscEUgC3Vd1LsZgaF8_Moao3su1C5_SccWZUNeiAXho2gJu9tuQT-jnzfyKNlXWu8sYgpmxTz-3PtqdHsVVLPcHK9eOL0JQU753EilTwUDJCKRH68kVYwLCadMutmUZTQVUGgmvfVRPkLyI3_sPX6AHqOjhpgcLkZ6F1s8TWGOxtw73Zc9gG_riennU3Rkm9FpZyrcTzmTjgJGPiESoDTzvZxxLwIQiVcaz7An56OEyF81RCGq-9jqyCmIef_kfuIFJYOZzs&pageKey=d_flagship3_profile_view_base
https://www.linkedin.com/csp/cat?v=1&action=click&trk=CwEAAAFlxGHbpugZ9xBORKgTrxACalXze651hkIFgtlDr0S9YN-3BqCzxqoUcquktWW-6MvCerfxbplvKArghQm2Ok9MfpBvxqeopztJTuuZbzrW-aKz1OvOB7ekHM0xdSsNQoB6E2OrlEr_SPmLckWelrww4oyaxjOxQRjP4hj3unJlEaOuAAijtfiHz0JN930b2_WEdTLoaD1Kw00GpjEEPmquwHoSR95c-3nmyahXXxw7xpB9i5U_YvCQN8D6euvimLP_L1ai_m-nTleRVwd8DeFI-E-H7OkaZiBjTmacI2y1v1VoaGUQvWrO2RtbCE_q5haRuWQnGmuUCOrChdXTMv79JKKsj9bFtBMlQSP9dFgekMXmlf0NwkSQby9_EtEaEjWw3X-L1m_NBhjuxZYGwUif_ADDh-dz1y6x_gwLb0S4Vj6TGmAYQHLdYi1LjFb0kTeLgeIb_bcQauedhr8saGKxcfX6Wt2MpDLVL3mHoTCO_yAc2ijUWPTK8jHALxJZiXRC5CHUPBY8_9_kpnodW0X2Tg5TGju0pA-hoir-Ff-ZpqMT_heBDM0iya1gpXT-bgFMM4PTLdteo2ZpadUzMBIY9vl0tMN51nj1U1h8B7wezvo5Vz0fyK4PFeNQIvD8_XTfV1buK3uXbtXccuB_bENvgxRBo27IOn4arZHrmuD16xhX7ea_fWyxRNqoNXLJUDs2nmpRAxwWsS8EFD9PjfQ2pGNuXWtkgyIOOU9AtF7Pkyiy2wowdYfhdLE1UVONFT8HzXi-IkpGxB3WgaxAK58kleZYj7tYshWcnk4z88v_aT2KcmKwDaXFCEKmAqH1rL3RZZcExdJXOBhC7vWAqMEq-W90FGNGXfITcuTn2iYgrfg1Pm1XCiGk4ogS4NBQ4GEbR-y8k9ecU3iak7D8qRlJGB0tl7qK4YSY9lu0ySEtnSa-eB-HcIvO7KPG6HzgpyueJKptmlSJj51fB46ALhi68Cfv3SIvGmoCgIhrbyxIeWj0LuTn372IFo0xKl66gbRJaKqHoP1gscEUgC3Vd1LsZgaF8_Moao3su1C5_SccWZUNeiAXho2gJu9tuQT-jnzfyKNlXWu8sYgpmxTz-3PtqdHsVVLPcHK9eOL0JQU753EilTwUDJCKRH68kVYwLCadMutmUZTQVUGgmvfVRPkLyI3_sPX6AHqOjhpgcLkZ6F1s8TWGOxtw73Zc9gG_riennU3Rkm9FpZyrcTzmTjgJGPiESoDTzvZxxLwIQiVcaz7An56OEyF81RCGq-9jqyCmIef_kfuIFJYOZzs&pageKey=d_flagship3_profile_view_base
https://www.linkedin.com/company/1278617/
https://www.linkedin.com/company/4855101/
https://www.linkedin.com/in/oliverpegueros/detail/treasury/position:379385112/?entityUrn=urn%3Ali%3Afs_treasuryMedia%3A(ACoAAAhmbuMBawWCctrJ9M0F05N0dk5qDcyQB6o%2C50078225)&section=position%3A379385112&treasuryCount=1
https://www.linkedin.com/company/42933/
https://www.linkedin.com/in/oliverpegueros/detail/treasury/position:326211441/?entityUrn=urn%3Ali%3Afs_treasuryMedia%3A(ACoAAAhmbuMBawWCctrJ9M0F05N0dk5qDcyQB6o%2C50627995)&section=position%3A326211441&treasuryCount=1
https://www.linkedin.com/company/662796/
https://www.linkedin.com/feed/
https://www.linkedin.com/feed/
https://www.linkedin.com/mynetwork/
https://www.linkedin.com/jobs/
https://www.linkedin.com/messaging/
https://www.linkedin.com/notifications/
https://www.linkedin.com/premium/products/?destRedirectURL=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fin%2Foliverpegueros%2F%3FshowPremiumWelcomeBanner%3Dtrue&upsellOrderOrigin=premium_nav_upsell_text
https://www.linkedin.com/feed/
https://www.linkedin.com/feed/
https://www.linkedin.com/mynetwork/
https://www.linkedin.com/jobs/
https://www.linkedin.com/messaging/
https://www.linkedin.com/notifications/
https://www.linkedin.com/premium/products/?destRedirectURL=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fin%2Foliverpegueros%2F%3FshowPremiumWelcomeBanner%3Dtrue&upsellOrderOrigin=premium_nav_upsell_text
https://www.linkedin.com/feed/
https://www.linkedin.com/feed/
https://www.linkedin.com/mynetwork/
https://www.linkedin.com/jobs/
https://www.linkedin.com/messaging/
https://www.linkedin.com/notifications/
https://www.linkedin.com/premium/products/?destRedirectURL=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fin%2Foliverpegueros%2F%3FshowPremiumWelcomeBanner%3Dtrue&upsellOrderOrigin=premium_nav_upsell_text
https://www.linkedin.com/feed/
https://www.linkedin.com/feed/
https://www.linkedin.com/mynetwork/
https://www.linkedin.com/jobs/
https://www.linkedin.com/messaging/
https://www.linkedin.com/notifications/
https://www.linkedin.com/premium/products/?destRedirectURL=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fin%2Foliverpegueros%2F%3FshowPremiumWelcomeBanner%3Dtrue&upsellOrderOrigin=premium_nav_upsell_text
https://www.linkedin.com/feed/
https://www.linkedin.com/feed/
https://www.linkedin.com/mynetwork/
https://www.linkedin.com/jobs/
https://www.linkedin.com/messaging/
https://www.linkedin.com/notifications/
https://www.linkedin.com/premium/products/?destRedirectURL=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fin%2Foliverpegueros%2F%3FshowPremiumWelcomeBanner%3Dtrue&upsellOrderOrigin=premium_nav_upsell_text
https://www.linkedin.com/feed/
https://www.linkedin.com/feed/
https://www.linkedin.com/mynetwork/
https://www.linkedin.com/jobs/
https://www.linkedin.com/messaging/
https://www.linkedin.com/notifications/
https://www.linkedin.com/premium/products/?destRedirectURL=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fin%2Foliverpegueros%2F%3FshowPremiumWelcomeBanner%3Dtrue&upsellOrderOrigin=premium_nav_upsell_text


9/10/2018 Oliver Pegueros | LinkedIn

https://www.linkedin.com/in/oliverpegueros/ 3/6

Pisos Creativos S de RL
Jul 2009 – Jul 2011 · 2 yrs 1 mo
Mexico City Area, Mexico
Commercializes flooring and finishing solutions in Mexico. 
 
Accomplishments: 
... See more

Senior Sales Executive and Coordinator
Equipamientos Urbanos de Mexico (now JC Decaux)
Feb 2001 – Jul 2009 · 8 yrs 6 mos
Mexico City Area, Mexico
Rents outdoor advertising spaces. 
 
Accomplishments: 
... See more

Show 3 more experiences 

Education

University of California, San Diego - The Rady School of Management
MBA, Business Administration
2011 – 2013

Activities and Societies: Rady Sports Business Club Officer

Universidad Iberoamericana, Ciudad de México
Bachelor of Science (BS), Business Administration and Management, General
1999 – 2004

Activities and Societies: Student Council Representative

American School Foundation
1985 – 1998

Activities and Societies: Senior Class President
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Volunteer Experience

Counselor/Event Volunteer
G3-16 Church San Diego
Jul 2014 – Jul 2014 • 1 mo
Children

Skills & Endorsements

Show more 

Endorsed by Luis Redondo and 1 other who is

highly skilled at this

Endorsed by 2 of Oliver’s colleagues at Midway

Importing, Inc.

Strategic Planning · 40

Endorsed by Alejandro Kunhardt S. and 4 others

who are highly skilled at this

Endorsed by 2 of Oliver’s colleagues at Midway

Importing, Inc.

Marketing Strategy · 37

Endorsed by Luis Redondo and 1 other who is

highly skilled at this

Endorsed by 2 of Oliver’s colleagues at Midway

Importing, Inc.

Business Development · 34

Recommendations

Francisco Boccaccio
Accountant, Certified
QuickBooks Online Pro
Advisor
September 25, 2015, Oliver
worked with Francisco in the
same group

Received (8) Given (0)

He is a team player, has a strong capability to work under pressure.
At Bomuca he shows his strong analysis skills and very organized
and thanks to his fast learning capability he rapidly fit into his
current role.
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Kymberly DIAZ-RUIZ
CEO at Dällg Co LLC
September 14, 2015, Oliver
worked with Kymberly in the
same group

Show more 

 
I have worked along side Oliver for over two years and his
planning, marketing, organization, research skills along with the
ability to be a strong team player has been a strong asset to the
launching of our products into the U.S. market. He brought
creative ideas to the marketing team, forecasting and organization
to the sales team and headed up Operations all at the same time.
He is very complete in his research and successfully developed
several marketing plans that helped increase revenue with new
retailers. Oliver assumed leadership roles in all operation,
marketing and sales meetings by motivating other employees with
his own examples. 
He is honest, extremely dedicated and a great person to have as a
friend and co-worker. Oliver is an important asset to our
organization. 

Accomplishments

2 Languages
English • Spanish

1 Organization
Asociacion de Empresarios Mexicanos
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